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INDEFENDENT AUMMTOR™S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
China Bank Insurance Brakers, Inc.

2IF, VOGP Center, 6771 Ayala Avenue
Barangay San Lorenzo, Makat City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial siatemenis of China Bank Insuance Brokers, Inc. (the Company ) which
comprise the balance sheets as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the starements of comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equty and statements of cash Bows for the vears then ended, and notes
e the fnancial statements, including & summary of significant accounting policies,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present tairly, m all matenal respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its Ginancial performance and its cash
Nows for the years then ended in accordance with Phalippice Financial Repoming Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We canducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Stasdands on Auditing (PSAs), Dur
responsibilities under those standands are further described in the Audivor s Responsihilities for the Awdit
of e Finaneiol Statements section of our report. 'We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Etlucs for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the
ethical requiraments that are relevant to our sudit of the financial statemenis in the Philippies, and we
have fulfilled our other cthical responsibilitizs in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the awdit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Responsibilitics of Management and These Charged with Governance for the Financial Statemenis

Management 8 responsible for the prepasation and fair presepation of the financial statements in
aceordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management delenmines 15 necessary 10 enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due fo frand or
ITr,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company™s ability fo
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related 1o going concem and using the
going concemn basgis of accounting unless management either mtends o liguidate the Company or 1o cease
opierations, or has no realistic altemative but to do o,

Thosze charged witl governance are responsible for overseeing the Co
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Ouir phjectives are o obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the Onancial statements as a whole are
Free Trom malerial inisstatement, whether due o frand or emror, and o issue an awditor s report that
imcindes our apinion. Keasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an
audit conducted m accordance with PSA: will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can anse from fraued o ermor and are considered matenal (L individeally of in the
aggregate, they could ressonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintiin
professionnl skepticism throughout the audin. We also;

# ldentify and azzess the nsks of matenal misstatervent of the financial statementy, whether due o framwd
or errer, design and perform audit procedure: responsive to those rsks. and obtain sudit evidence that
is sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nisk of not detecting a matenial
misstatement resultmg from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of intemmal control.

s Obtain an understanding of mtemal control refevant w the audit in order 1o design aodin procedures
thit are appropriate m ihe circumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
etfectiveness of the Company’s intemal control.

s Evaluare the appropriatencss of aceounting policies used and the reasonableness of aceounting
cstimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
baged an the audit evidence obiained, whether a maternial uncerainty exisls related 1o evenls or
conditions that may cast signifecant doubt on the Company s ability 1o continuge a8 & going concem.
If we conelude that a material uncertainty exiats, we ane required to drow atiention in our puditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statéments or, if sach disclofures are inadequare, 1o
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
guditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company t0 cease [0 continue
35 @ Eoing concem.

» Evaluate the overall presentztion, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the under]ying transactions and evenls in a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

We commumicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the andit and significant audit findings. inchuding any significant deficiencies in iternal

contral tharwe identify duning our audit,
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Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Cur audits wene conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic [Inancial statements taken
as a whole. The supplementary information required under Reverue Repulations 13-2010in Note 22 10
the financial siatements i presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Intemal Revenue and is not
a required part of the basie Anancial statements, Such information is the responsibility of the _
management of Chma Bank Insurance Brokers, Inc. The information has been subjected 1o the anditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements, In our opinion, the information 15 fairly
stated, in all material respects, in refation (o the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO,
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CPA Certilicale Mo, 92415
Tax [dentification Mo, 193-975-24]
BOATPRC Reg, No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid unul April 15, 2024
SEC Pariner Accreditation No, S2305-5EC (Oroup A)

Vitlid to cover audit of 2021 1o 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
SEC Firm Accrediftation No. 0001-SEC (Group A)

Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Accreditation Mo, C8-001998-062-2020, December 3, 20240, valid until December 2, 2033
PTR No. 8833462, January 3, 2022, Makah City
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CHINABANK INSURANCE BROKERS, INC.

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of China Banking Corporation)

BALANCE SHEETS
December 31
021 2030
ASEETS
Current Assels
Cash and cagh equivalents (Notes 5 and 15) PI14,618,838 B276,800 285
Receivables (Motes 4 and 18) 0,265,226 6, 2RH. 470
Investmeent al Tair value through profit or loss (Note 7 and 18] 151,209 389 150,040,984
Chibeer cumeni assels (Note &) S0.00 2,802 20046, 544
511100255 462 206 (152
Moncurrent Assets
Froperty and equipment (Mote 9) 35452873 41247397
=Roltware costs (Note 110] 5.HI0. 200 711,299
Dreferred incomie tax azsel (Mote 15) 10,497 352 13,748 400
Pension asset {Mote 14) 2981004 |,546,192
Crher noncuirent agzets (Maote 111 1872371 1, 872371
56,630,590 B5, 125 725
P68, 730,845 B327 391 K08
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Favable to inserance principals {Mote 12) B17,920,505 B37,950,352
Accrued expenses 4. 203,460 4.B28 948
Lease Lability: (Mote 19] £.979,3068 6,304,211
Cher current habiliies (Note 13} 153, 778,094 159,218 600
191L881.427 238 312 111
Moncurrent Liability
Lease hability (Mote 1%} 19,780,354 26,654,071
211,661,781 204,966,182
Equity
Capital stock — 8100 par value
Authorized — 5,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding — 1421 3(W) shares 142130000 142,130,000
Retained eamings (Node 16)
Appropriated 80,000,000 30,000,000
Unappropriated 125,350,948 "1,336,439
Other equity — stock prant (MNote 16) 622300 G456, 300
Remeasurement gaing on retisement plan (Note 14) 0.971.816 8,302 5097
256075064 262 A25 616G
#5643, 736,845 B527 391,808
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CHINABANK INSUBANCE BROKERS, INC,
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of China Banking Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2021 2020
REVENUE
Commisaions PI4Y.518.365 EIU7 123,805
OPERATING EXPENSES
Compensation and fringe benefits (Notes 14 and 18} 62. 248,157 54 TR7 524
Marketing 29,791,289 24,131,514
Drepreciation and amortization (MNotes 9 and 107 12,592.110 S.200.193
Management and professional fees (Mote 16) 4.971.767 5422225
Entertainment, amusément, and recreation (MNote 133 3,564,990 3544219
Taxes and licenses 18364, 5kh 1985218
Meszsenperial and janitonal servicey 1.52% K44 913,171
Statoneny and office supplics 1262502 617917
Crecupancy 1,215,463 3,260,181
Reversal of impairment losses (Mote 11) ({L210,574) -
Postage, lelephone, and welegraph 695355 TR1.O44
Transpomation and iravel 252342 270547
Misceflancous P.493.925 615377
128,277,776 | 14,379,122
NET DPERATING INCOME 121,250,589 B, 744,683
OTHER INCOME (LOSS)
Interest (Motes 5, 7 and 18] 554,059 1. 833.205
Miscellaneous (Notes 7 and 9) 1,945,139 (1,715 .965)
o 2,499,798 1,097 240
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 123,750,387 87.841,923
FROYVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Mote [ 5) 1,735,878 o4 178,082
NET INCOME 92,014,509 Bl.663 841
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Ttemns that recycle to profil or loss in subsequent periods
Fair value changes on investments at fir value through other
comprehensive income {Mote 7) = 29,663
Loss on imvestments at fair value through other comprehensive
income taken o profit or loss (Note T) - 1,334,018
freum therr does pod recyicle o profit or foss (n suhseguent perfods
Remeasuremant gains on refirement plan, net of ax
(Note 14} 1.669.219 34,057
1669219 1,617,738
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME PO3,683.718 P65, 2R1.53T0

See aconmponving Nodes b Fircrciol StatempnSFVaRUE i B i S,
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CHINABANK INSURANCE BROKERS, INC.
{A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of China Banking Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income befiore income Lax FI123,750,387 PRT R41.921
Adstmenis for:
Depreciation and amotization (Motes 9 and 105 L5900 3,990,191
Betirament cxpense [Mate 14) 1,786,076 el T ALG
Interesl cxpense [MNote [9) 1,445,751 262 176
Reversal of impairment losses (Mote 11 (L2110 5T4) =
Trading gam «n myvestmeeat at foir valoe through profit or loss (Note 73 {1, 108,405} (40,984)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gin) [T76,734) 232493]
[inberest income Motes 5 and T) [554,65Y) {LBOT524)
Stock grant (Mots 16) (54, 2%H1) 56, 590
Loss on sale of investments at fair value through other comprehensive
ineorne [(Mote 7) - 15541018
Operating imcome before working copital changes 136, 796 15462 O, 506, T2
Increase in the amounts of
Receivables {3420 (1,097 QRE)
Dither assets (715,381) (4,578 449)
Inerzage {decrease) in the amounts of!
Payable 14 insueance principals (100X E4T) (29,329,762)
Uther liabilibes (35,440.500) &4 850,754
Accrued expenses (H25.4588) {347.134)
Met cash penerited from operations B, BH2.020 145,594,190
Interest received 281,323 3,502 082
[nsomie tax pand { Mot 15 (3T, 290,950) {27045, KE)
Contributions paid {Mote 147 (1. 786.076) (8.554.142)
Nt cash provided by operating activitics 50456317 113,394 938
CASH FLOWS FROM INYESTING ACTIVITIES
Agquisitiens of
Property and equipment [Mote 95 (5404 331 (5,409 366)
Saftwane costs (BMobe 1) (435,357 (240.542]
Investment at fair value through peofit or les (MNode 7) - {150 (O (KK
Proweds Moo
Sale of investieents at Gk value troegh other comprehensivo:
s (Mabe T 26 5440 456
Bale of property equipment (Mot 9) = BRGA12
Met cash usod in investing activitics {3.920.187) {126,222 8400
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment= of principal portion of the lease liability (Bote 19) (6,208,560 {2.858.343)
Payments of the interest portiva of the lease lubality (Mo 19} (1,405,751) | 262,276}
Dividends doclared and paid 10 siockholders = [ 1500040, 0000 )
Cash used m finapcing activitics (7.614,310) {153.120,619)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 1M CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 36,951,819 FIAT A8 520
EFFECTS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE TG, TH (A22,531)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 276, 800285 445,061,737
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
EMD OF YEAR (Mote 5) P14, 618 818 #2176 B RS
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CHINABANK INSURANCE BROKERS, INC.
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of China Banking Corperation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

Chinabank Insurance Beokers, Inc. (the Company], a wholly ewned subsidiary of China Banking
Corporation (CBC or the Parent Company), was registercd with the Philippine Sccuritics and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on November 3, 1998 primarily to cngage in insurance brokerage
business, The Company stamed its commercial operations on February 24, 1999,

The Company’s principal place of business is Iocated at 2F, VP Center, 6772 Avala Avenoe,
Barangay San Lorenro, Makati Ciny.

Fed

Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a histonical cost basis except for
financial assctz at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL) that have been measurcd at Gair walue,
The financinl staterments are presented in Philippine peso (B which isalso the Company’s functional.
All amounts aré rounded to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

The accompanying fimancial stalements of the Coompany have heen prepared 1n acoardance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Changes in Accounting Policies and Distlosures

The aceounting policies adopted dre consistent with those of the prévious financial vear except for the
following amendments to PFRS which became effective beginming January 1, 2021, except for the
amendment 1o PFRS 16 which is effective begmning Apnl 1, 2021 as dizcussed below. Unless
atherwise indicated, these changes in the accounting policies did not have any significant impact on
the financial position or performance of the Company:

e Amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7, PFRS 4 and PFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchrrark Reforn -
Phase 2

The amendments provide the following temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting
effects when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) 15 replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free
intersst rate (RFR})

o Practical expedient for changes in the basis for determimng the contractual cash flows as a
result of IBOR reform

o Relief from discontinuing hedging relationships

o Belief from the separately identifiable requirement when an RFER instrimeni is designated
ag o hedge of & risk compaonent

g
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The Company shall also disclose mformation about;

o The nature and extent of risks to which the extity 15 exposed arising from [inancial
mstruments subject to IBOR reform, and how the entity manages those risks; and

& Their progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates, and how the
entity is managing thal transition

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after Jannary 1,
2021 and apply retrospectively, however, the Company is not required lo réstate prior periods.

& Amendment to PERS 16, COFID- I Qrelated Rent Concessiony beyond 30 fore 2020

‘The amendment provides reliel 1o lessees rom applying the PFRS 16 requirement on lease
modifications (o rent concessions anising os a direct consequence of the COVID-192 pandemic. A
lessee may elect not 1o assess whather a rent concesswon from a lessaor 15 a lease modification if
meets all of the following criter

o The rent concession is a direct consequence of COVID-19;

o The change in lease payiments results in a revised lease consideration that 15 substantially the
same &5, of less than, the lease consideration immediately preceding the change!

o Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before

o Jume 30, 2022; and

o There 15 no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

A lesee that applies this practical expedient will account for any change in lease paymeniz
resulting from the COVID-1%-related rent concession in the same way it would aceount for a
change that s not a lease modification - ie., a8 a variable lease payment.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting perieds beginning on or after April 1, 2021,
Early adoption s permitted.

The Company adopred the amendment beginning April 1, 2021.

Lurrent versus Mon-current Classification
The Company presents assess and liabilities in the halance sheet bassd on current or non-current
classification. An asset is presensed as a current asset when:

s It i5 expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed within the normal operating
oycle;
[t is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It 15 expeoted to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* i is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or wsed o settle a habality for
At Jeas! twelve months after the reporting period.

All nther assets are classified 35 non-carment assets.



.

A liability is presented as a current liability when:

It iz expected © be settled within the normal operating cycie;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is due o be sertled within twelve months after the reporting peniod: or

There 1z no unconditional night to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve moniths
after the repoing period.

All other iabilties are classified as non-current.
The Company classifies deferred tax assets and liabilities as non-cumrent.

Fair Value Measurement

For measurement and disclosure purposes, the Company determines the fair value of an asset or
ltability at initial measurernent date or ar each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would
be received o sell an asset or paid o transfer a lability in an orderdy transaction between market
participants ot the measurement date. The fair value measurement i$ based on the presumption that

the fransaction to sell the asset or transfer the hability akes place either:

» In the prircipal market for the asset or by, or
s Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageons market for the asset or lability.

[he prpeipal or the most advantagesus market must b2 accessible w the Company.

The G value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
wonld use when pricing the asset or hability, assuming that market participants aci in their economic
best inmrest

A fair value measurement of 2 non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
genergte econcimic benefits by using the asset m its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sulTicient data are available 1o measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable mputs
and minimizing the use of unohservable inputs.

vilents
For purposes of reporting cash Qows, cash includes cash in bank and petty cash fumds. Cash
equivalents are converible to known amounts of cash which bave onginal maturitics of three months
or less from dates of placemsents and that are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes tn value.

Finencial Instruments

Dare of recogrifion

Fmencial instruments within the scope of PFRS 9 are retognized in the balince sheet when the
Company becemes a party to the contmetual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of
[tnancial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace are recognized on the settlement date, the date that an assel 15 delivered
to or by the Company,
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Classificarion and initial recognition of financial instruments

The classification of financial instrements at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms
und the business mode] for managing the instruments. Financial mstruments ane initially measured at
fair value; cxcept for finencial instruments at FVTPL, ransaction costs are added 1o, or subtracted
from, the amoumt at imtial recopnition.

Coniractiel cash flows rest

In order for a financial asset 1o be classified and measured at mnorbized cost or FYOCL, it needs to
give rise 1o cash [Tows that are *solely payments of principal and interest (SPPL)’ on the principal
amount omsianding.  This assessment 15 referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instument
level

‘Principal” for the purposs of this test is defined as the fair valoe of the Gnancial asset a1 initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments
of principal or amortizntion of the premiumediseount).

The most significant clements of interest within a lending armangement are typically the consideration
for the ome value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies
judgement and considers relevant factors such as the cormency inowhich the (inancial assets is
denominzsted, and the penod for which the interest rate is set

Business model assessment

The Company’s business model for managing linancial assets refers to how it manages its finapcal
assets in order to penerate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash Aows wall result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Subseguent measurement
For purpeaes of subsequent measurement, financial aseets are classified in four calegories:

Financial asssts at amortized cost
Financizal assets at FYOC] with recyeling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
» Financial assets designated at FVOCT with no recveling of comulative gans and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)
» Financial assets at FVTPL

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company’s financial assets comprised of fmancial assets at
amortized cost and financial assets at FVTPL-

Financiol assefy af amortized coxf
Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

e The asser 1 held within the Company s business madel whose objective is to hold financial nssets
in order to collect contraciual cash fMows; and

& The contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on specified dates. to cash Nows that are SPPI
on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt financial assets meeting these critena are measured inttally at [air value plus transaction costs.
They are subseguently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method less allowance
for expected credit losses. Amorized cost 15 calculated by taking mto account any discount or
premium on accuisition and fees that are an mtegral part of the effective interest rate (EIR). The
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amortization is included in *Interest income’ in the statement of comprehensive income. Gains and
bosses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive meome when the asset 15 derccognized,
madified or impamed.

The Company's finanecial assets at amortized cost inclodes "Cash and cash equivalenis’,
‘Receivables’, ‘Claims advances’ and “Rental deposits” under "Other noncurment assets’.

The Company may trevocably elect at initial recognition to classify a financial asset that meets the
amortized cost critena above as at FVTPL if that designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch had the financial asset been measured at amortized cost.

Financial asvers ar FVTPL

Dbt metmuments thet neither meet the amodized cost nor the FYOCT crtesia, or that meet the critena
but the Company has chosen 1o designate as at FVTPL at initial recognition, are classified as financial
assets at FVTPL. Equity investments are classified as financial assets at FVTPL, unless the Company
irrevocably designates an equity mvestment that is not held lor treding ag at FVOCT at inital
recogmition. The Company's financial assets al FVYTPL include debt and equity scouritics which are
held for trading purposes.

Lsains and losses ansing from changes (mark-to-market) 1 the fair value of the financial assels al
FVTPL are ncluded m “Other income (loss) - miscellaneous” account in the statement of
comprehensive mcome.

Reclasstfication of fnancial instruments

The Company reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, there is a change in the

business model for managing the financial assets. Accordingly, the Company is required to reclassily
finnncial agsets: (1) from amaoriized cost io faarwaloe, iF the ehjechive of the business mode] changes
go tlat the amortized cost erteris are no longer miet; and, (i) from Gir value t amortized cost, if the
objective of the business model changes 5o that the amortized cost critersa start to be met and the
eharactenatic of the instrument’s contractual cash flows meet the amortized cost crifena.

A change in business model occurs when the Company cither begins or ceases to perform an activity
that is significant to % operations. Reclassifications shadl be applied prospectively by the Company
and any previously recognized gains, losses or interest shall not be restated. Reclassification of
financial liabilities is not allowed

Financial Habiliney at amortized cost

Issued Ninancial instruments or their components, which are not designated at FVTPL are classitied as
liabilities under ‘Payable to insurance principals’, *Accrued expenses’, and "Other linbilities’, where
the substance of the contractual arramgement results in the Company having an obligation either to
deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial aszet for a fixed number of own equity
shares.

Thie components of issued financial instraments that contain both liability and equity clements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount aficr
deduciing from the instnument as a wholé the amount separately determined as the fair value of the
lEability component on the date of issuc.

Financial labihites al amoriized cost are imatially recognized at the far value of the consideranon
received less directly attributable transaction costs.



Impairment of Firancial Assels

The Company recognizes an allowance for ECL for all debt financial nssets except those classified as
FVTPL. The ECL is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects w0 receive, discounted ot an
gpproximation of the original efTective interest rate which is determined by evaluating & mnge ol
puossible cutcomes, the lime value of money and reasonable and supportabie information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future sconemic conditions.

The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recopnized m two stages. For coedit exposunes [or which there has mot been a significant
increage in eredit risk snes inital recognition, ECLs are provided for eredit loszes that result from
definlt events that are possible within the next 13 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
eaposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit nisk since imitial recognition, a loss
allowance 15 required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, imespeclive
of the timing of the defaul (& lifetime ECL)

The Company defines a financial instrument as in default, which is fully aligned with the definition of
credit impaired, in all cases when the borrower becomes al least 90 davs past due on {18 coniracieal
pavments. As a part of a quahtative assessment of whether a customer 18 in default, the Company akso
considers a variety of inslances that may indicale unlikeliness to pay. When such events occur, the
Company carefully considers whether the event should result in tresting the customer as defanlted.

For wade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach in caleulating BECL since these
receivables arise from transactiors within the scope of PERS 15 and do mob contain signifcant
financing component. Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit
rizk, bul instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL2 af each balance sheet date. O
the other hand. the Company calculates the ECL Tor its cash in bank by estimating the applicable
exposure at default, probability of default, and loss given default.

1] i “id [ 1] b

Financiol assex
A financial asset {or, where applicable a part of a financial assetl or part of a group of finzndal assels)
15 derecogmized when:

¢ The neghts to receive cash Dows from the assel have expired; or

s  The Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them m full without material delay toa third party under o “pass-through™
arrangemmt; oar

s The Company has transfered i3 nghts to receive cash flows from the asset and ejther
(&} has ransfemed subsiamtially all the nsks and rewards of the asset, or (b has neither transferred
nor refained the rsks and rewands of the asset bl has transberred the control ot the asset.

When the Company has transferred ifs nghts to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arranpement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset not transferred control of the asset, the asset 15 recognized to the extent of the
Company’$ continuing involvemeant in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset 18 measured at the lower aof the original chrrving amournt of the
azsct ond the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required 1o repay.



Write-offs

Financial assets are written ofT either partially or in their entirety when the Company ne longer
eapects collections or rocoveries within a foreseeable future. 1F the amount to be wntten off 13 greater
than the accummlated loss allowance, the difTerence is fiest reated as an addition to the allowance that
i5 then applied aguinst the gross carying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited w
provision for credit Jogses.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecopnized when the ebligation under the Babihty s discharged, cancelled,
or has expired. When an existing {inancial hability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or madification is treated as a derecognition of the origmal Liability and the recagnition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income,

OlTsetting

Financial assets and firancial inkilities are offset and the net amount is reported 10 the balance sheet
only when there is & legally enforceable nght w offset the recognized amounts and there is intention
1o settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and setile the liability simultancously. The Company
assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the night is not contingent on a fature
event, and 15 legally enforcenble in the nonmal course of business, event of default, and event of
insolvency or bankruptoy of the Company and all of the counterparties,

Income and expenses are not offs=1 in the statement comprebensive income unless required or
permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, and is specifically disclosed in the accounting
policies of the Company.

Leases — Company as 3 Lesses

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or conlains, a lesse, That is, ifthe
centract conveys the right to control the vwse of an identified asset for o peried of time in exchange for
a consideration,

Righr-of-itxe assers

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets al the commencement date of the lease (1.2, the date the
underhving iz available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured ol cost less any acoumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease Liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized adjusted by lease payments
made at or before the commencement date and lease incentives received. Right-of-use assels e
depreciated on & straight-line basis over the shorler of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the depreciahle azsets. The depreciation expense is presented under ‘Depreciation” in the statement of
comprehensive income

Loare liabilifior

At the commeneement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilines measured at the
present value of lease paymients to be made over the lease term. The lease payments nclude fixed
payments {including in substance fixed poyments) less any lesse incentives recciviable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index of & tate, and amounts expected 1© be paid under residual value
puaraniees. The lease payments also inchede the exercise price of o purchase option reasonably
certain to be exervised by the Company and payments of penalties for lerminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recopnized a5 expense in the penod on which the event or
condition that triggers the pavment occurs.
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In calculating the present value of fease payments, the Company uses the incremental borowing rate
(IBR) it the lease commencement date if the imersst rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable, Afiter the commencement dite, the amount of lease Liabilities is inereased 0 reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made, In addition, the camrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change m the lease term, & change in the in-
substance fxed [ease payments or a change in the assessment 10 purchase the underlying asset.

Shor-term levses and leases of fow-value assers

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to i shor-term leases. Ttalso
applhies the lease of low-value asscis recognition exemplion o assels (hat are considered 1o be low-
value, Lepse pavments on shori=term lesses andd leascs of low=valie assels ame recognizel] a5 expense
an a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any
impiitment in value.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises of its purchase price, including tixes and any
directly atiributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its inlencded
use. Expenditures incurred alter the assets have been put into aperation, such as repairs and
maintenance and overhead costs, are charped against current operations. In situations where it can be
clearly demonsirated that the expenditures have resulted in an incregse in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond its
onginally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional cosis of
property and equipmenl. When azsels are refired of otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related
accumulated depreciation and any omparrment loss are removed from the acoounts and any resulling
gain or loss is credited fo or charged against current operations.

It is the Company's policy to classify nght-of-use assels a5 part of property and equipment. The
Company recopnizes right-of-use asseis ai the commencement date of the lease (1.2, the date the
underlying asset is avaslable for use). Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciarion and impainment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
lisbilitics. The inilial cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease abilities recognized,
innal direct costs incumred, |ease pavments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received and estimate of costs 10 be incurred by the lessee tnodismantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoning the site on which it 8 located or restonng the underlying asset lo the
cendition required by the temns and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred 1o produce
invenlories.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-lme method over the estimated useful lives (EUL) of the
respective assels as fallows:

EUL
Fumimurs, fixiures and équipment 1 to 5 yeary
Leaschold improvements 5 wears or the
relatend lease
Lers,
whichever is
shomer
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Unless the Company is reascnably cermain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the
lease tenm, the recognized right-of~use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of their estimated usefidl life and lease erm. Right-ol-use assets are subject o impairment.

The EUL and the depreciation methed are reviewed periodically to ensure that the peniod and the
method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefiss from items of
property and equipment.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impaimment when events or changes
in circumstances mdicate the carrving values mav not be recoverable. 17 any such indication exists
and where the carmying values excesd the estimated recoverable amaounts, the assefs or cash-
generating units (CGL) are written down to their recoverable amounts.

Softwane Costs

Cosls that are directly assoviated with identifiable and unigue software controlied by the Company
amd will generate ceonomuic benefits excecding costs beyond one year are capitalized. Direct cosis are
capttalized durng the period of software development and are amotized on a straight-ling basis over
the expected uséml fife of 10 years upon completion,

Costs associated with maintaining computer sellware progroms are recopgnized as expense when
incurmed.

Expenditures which enhance or extend the performance of software programs beyond their original
specifications are recognized as capital improvements and added to the orginal cost of the software

The useful life of capitalized software cost i3 assessed and reviewed periodically. Changes in the
expected useful hife are accounted for by changing the amortization period and method, as
appropriate, and are treated as chanpges in accounting estimates.

Lol M cial Agzers
At each balance shoet date, the Company assesses whether there = any indication that its nonfinancial
assels (e, property and equipment, software cost and right-of-use nsscts) may be impatred. When
an indicator of impaimment exists or when annual impairment testing for an asset is reguired, the
Company minkes a formal estimate of recoverable amount. Where the camying amount of an asser
exceeds i1 recoverable amount, the assel is considered impaired and is writien down o its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or a OGU s fair value less
costs o sell and itz value m use (VIU). In assessme VI, the estimatad funire cash fows are
discounted to their present value using the pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
asscasment of the time value of money and the risks specific (o the asset. For an asset that does not
generate larpely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to
which the asset belongs. Impairment losses are recognized under * Provision for credit and
itmpairment logses” in the statement of comprehensive income.

An impairment loss is recomnired only 1F the carrving amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amounl, Animpairment 1088 is charged against operationa m the year in which it anses. A

previously recognized impamment loss 15 reversed by a credit to cument operations to the extent that 11
does not restate the asset to a camying amount n excess of what would have been determined (net of
any wccumulated depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years,
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Payable tv lnsurance Principals
Payeble t insurance principals pertain to premiums collected from policyholders but net yet remitted
[0 insurdne e companies,

Equuty

Capital stock 18 measured al par value for all shares issued and owstanding. When the shares are sold
at a premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value is credited to * Additonal paid-in
capital” account. Direct costs incurred related to equity issuance, such as underwriting, accounting
and legal fees, printing costs and 1axes are chargeable w0 ‘ Additional paid-in capital” account. 15 the
additional paid-in capital is not sufficient, the excess 1s charged against the *Retained camings,

When the Company issues more than one class of stock, a separate account 18 mamntamed for each
class of stock and the number of shares issued.

Retained eamings represent accumulated camings of the Company less dividends declared.

Fevenue Recognition

Revenues withm the scope of PFRS 13

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services 15
transferred Lo the custamer gl an amount that reflecis the conzideration towhich the Company expects
10 be entifled n exchange for those goods and services, The Company assesses its revenue
amangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The
Company has penerally concluded that it is acting as an agent in its revenue amangements because it
does not control (he specilied goods or services before these are transferred to the customer.

Therefore, the Company's revenue is the net amount of considermtion that the Company retaing after
paving the other party the consideration received in exchange for the poods or services to be provided
by that party.

For revenue stream coversd by PFES 15 (e, commission income), the Company exercise fwlgement,
laking into consideration all of the relevant facis and circumstances when applving each step of the
five-step model (o coniracts with customers.

The fellowing revense recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Cammisyion incone
Revenue [rom commissions is recoenized upon collection of insurance premium from policyholders.

Revene omticde the seope of PFRS 15
The following revenue recognition criteria must also be met before revenue 18 recognized:

Interest tHeame
Interest income on placements is recopmized 85 it averoes, aking inlo account the effective vield on
the asscts,

Gain (Toss) from hesiment securities under miscellaneaus income

Ciain (loss) from investment securities anse from changes in fair valoe of financial assers at FVTTL
and losses realized from sale of FVOCL debt investmenis,
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Expense Recopnition

Expenses are recognized when decrease in future economic benelits redated to a decrease in an assct
or an increase of a liability bas arisen that can be measured reliably. Expenses are recognized when
incurred. Costs and expenses encompass losses as well as those expenses that arise in Lthe course ol
the ordinary activities of the Cormpany.

Income tax on profit or loss for the year comprises current and defered taxes. Income tax is
determined in accordance with the Philippine Tax Law. Provision for income tax is recognized m the
statement of comprehensive Income

Clunivent toxes

Currenit tax assets and current tax labilities for the coment penod are messured st the smesunt
expected 1o be recovered from or paid 1o the mxation authorities, The tax rates and tax faws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Effective Jamuary 1, 201%, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with
respect to situanons in which applicable tax regulations are subject v interpretations and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred toxey

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet hability method, on all temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and Uheir carrving amounts for
financial reporting purposes al the balance sheet date except {(a) where the deferred meome tax asset
or liability relating to the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transacrion that is not a bisiness combination and, a1 the ime of the transacoon, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and (b) in respect of temporary differences
aszociated with invesimenis in subsidianies snd assoctates, deferred income tax 1= provided or
recormized whers the timing of the temporary differences can be contrallad and i€ is probable that the
temporary differeoces will not reverse in the foresecable future,

Deferred tax labilitics are recognized for all texable temporary differences. Deferred tax assels are
recoenized for all deductible temporary differences, carryiorwand of unosed tas credits Gom the
excess of minimum corporate income ax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income ax (RCIT), and
unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCOY), to the extent thar it is probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward of
unuszed tax credits from MOIT and unused NWOLCO can be utilized. Delerred tax, however, is not
recognized on lemporary differences thal anse from the inital recopmtion of an asset or hability ina
transaction that is not 2 business combination and, at the fime of the transaction, alfects neither the
gecolmling income nor Baxable ineome,

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed ar each balance sheet date and reduced 1o the
extent that it i3 no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 1o allow all or part of
the deferred mcome tax asset to be utilized. Unrecopnized deferred imcoms iax assels are reazsessed
at each bulance sheet date and are recognized io the extent that 11 has become probable that fuiuire
taxable profit will allow the deferred income tax asset o be recovered,

Dreferred tax asseds and delemed wx Labilites are measured at the 12x raes that are applicable tw the

period when the asset is realized or the Hability 15 sewled, based on 1ax rates (and fax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacled at the balance sheel date
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Current tax and deforred tax relating to items recognized directly m other comprehensive income is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Ereferred income tax assets and [iabilitees are ofTset if a legally enforeeable nght exises o =et of T
Curmenl ineome X assels dpainst cument income 1ax labilivies and the defemed income taxes relate to
thee same txable entity and the same taxation authority.

Foreign Currency Translation

Transaction and balances

For fimancial reporting purposes, the foreipn currency-denominated monetary assets and habilitics are
translated in Philippine pesos based on the closing rate prevailing at the balance sheet date and
foreign currency-denominated income and expenses. al the prevadling exchange rate at the dare of
transaction. Foreign exchange differences arising from restatements of foreign currency-denominated
monetary assets and Habilities are credited 1o or charged against operations in the period in which the
rales change

Monmenetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forcign cumrency are translated
uzsing 1he exchange mies at the dates of the inital transactions, Nonmonetary items measured at fair
valee in a foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rates at the dete when the fair value was
derenmmined.

Vilue-Added Tax (VAT and Deferred Ourput VAT

Revenues, expenses, assets and Habilities are recogmized net of the amount of VAT, except where the
VAT incurmed on & purchase of assets or services is nol recoverable from the taxation authonty, in
which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item as applicable. Deferred output VAT pertams to the amount of Outpul VAT on sales on
credit which have not yet been collected as at balance sheet date.

The net amount of sales tax recovershle from, or payable to. the taxation suthority i2 included as part
of "Oither curveat assets” or *Other liabilities’ 1n the balance sheet,

Retrement Benefits

The Company is covered by a nonconuibutory defined benelit retirement plan. A defined bencfi
plan is & retirement plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employvee will receive on
refirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensarion.

Liefined Derefit plan

The net defined benefit liability or asset 15 the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any}, adyusted for any
effect of limiting & net defined benefit asset o the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling 15 the present value
of any economic benefits availible in the form of refinds from the plan or reductions in future
contribulions to the plan.

The cost of providing benelits under the defined benefit plans is actuanally determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Deefined benelit costs comprise the following:
4. Bervice costs;

b, Met interest on the net defined benefil habality or asset; and
¢. Rememsurements of net defined benefit liability or asset.
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Service costs which include current service costs and past service costs are recognizal as expense in
the statement of comprehensive income. Past service costs are recognized when plan amendment or
curtailment ocours, These amounds are calculated pededically by independent qualified sctuaries

Met interest on the net defined bepefit lability or asset is the change during the peried in the net
delined beneft liability or assel that arses from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rale based on povernment bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset, Net interest

om the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in statement of
comprehensive income.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gaing and losses, retum on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset celling {exeluding net interest on defmed benefit Babiling) are recopnized
immedintely in OCLin the penod im which they anse. Remeasurements are nod reclazsified 1o
statement of comprehensive income in subsequent periods,

Plan agsets are assels that ane held by a long-tenmn employee benefit fund, Plan assels are not
available 1o the creditors of the Company, ner can they be poid divectly to the Company. Fair value
of plan assets 15 based on market price information. When no market price is available, the fair value
of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected frture cash flows using a discount rate that
reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date of
those assets (or, i they have no maturnity, the expected period until the settlement of the related
obligations), 17 the Gair value of the: plan assess is higher than the present value of the defined benelt
obligation, the measurement of the resultmg defined benefit asset 15 limated to the present value of
economic benefits available in the Torm of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions
to the plan.

The Company’s right o be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required 1o settle a defined
benehi obligation 18 recogmzed as a sepammte assef ab far valuwe when and anly when reimbursement 15
virtually eertain.

share-baged Payvments (Stock Granis)

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company received remuncration in the form of share-
based payments (stock grants), whereby emplovees rendered services as consideration for equiry
instrunnents (equily=seiled imnsactons) of CBC, CBC has the obligation 1o setle the ransacion
with the Company s employees by providing its own equily ingimiments.

Equiry-geitled ronsaciions

The cost of equity-settled transactions s determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is
made using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognized in emplovee benefits expense,
togeiher with & corresponding increase in equity (other capital reserves), over the period in which the
gservice and, where applicable. the performance conditions are fullilled (the vesting penod). The
cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting penod has expired and the Company's best estimate of
e rurnber of equity ingtruments that will ultimaiely vest, The expense or eredit in the statement of
comprehicnsive income for a period represents the mevement in cionukative expense recognized as-at
thie beginning and eid of that period,

Service and non-markel performance conditions are not taken into sccount when determmining e
grant date fair vafue of awards, but the likelihcod of the conditions being met s assessed as part of
the Company s best estimate of the number ol equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
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tor an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an swird and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and'or performance conditions.

Mo expense is recognized for awards that do not wltimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awands include a market or non-vestng
condition, the transactions are treated as vested imespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is sabsfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equitv-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the
grant date Fair value of the unmodified award, provide the ariginal vesting terms of the award are
mat.

An additional expense, measured as at the date of modification, 1= recogmzed for any madification
that increases the total feir value of the shure-based payment trnsaction, or 15 ctherwise beneficial w
the employee. Whens an awand is concelled by the Company or by the counterparty, any remaining
element of de Fair valoe of the award i expensed immediatzly through profit or loss.

When the equity-setiled transactions vest immediately but the grant date 15 not vel determined as of
balance sheet date, the Company recognizes the expense and the corresponding increase m equity
using the estimated gramt date fair value as of balance sheet date. Subsequently, once the grant date is
determined, the Company revises the estimate bazed on the actual grant date fair vahie.

Provisions

Prowvisions &re recogmized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constractive) asa
result af o past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits
will be required to settle the obligtion and a relinhle estimate can be made of the amoum of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money i matenal, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected Miture cash flows at & pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the fime value of money and, where sppropriate, the risks specific to the lability.

Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due o the passage of 1ime is recognized a5 an
interest expense. When the Company cxpects a provision to be reimbarsed, for example, under an
InEUrance contract, he reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is probable.

Conlineenl Assels and Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recopmzed in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the
possibility of an cutflow of assets embodying economic benefits 18 remote. Contingent assets are not
recopnized but are disclosed in the financial statements when an mflow of economic benefils is
probable.

Events after the Balanee Sheet Date

Post year-end events up to the dute of approval of the boand of directors of the financial stalements
that provide additional information about the Company”s fnancial position at the balance sheel date
{adjusting event) are recognized in the financial staterments. Post year-end events that are not
adjusting evenls are disclosed in the notes o the Onancial starcmenis when material.




Mew standards and int but are not vel elfective

Ther: are new PFRSs, amendments, interpretation and annual improvements to existing standards
which ane effective for annual periods subsequent to 2021, Management will adopt the following
redevant pronouncements in accordance with their transitonal provisions, and, unless otherwise
stated, none of these are expected 1o have significant impact on the Company *s financial sttements:

Effective hegnnning on or afier Sanuwaiy 1, 2022
»  Amendments 1o PFRS 3, Reference fo the Conceprival Framework

The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements. issued in 1989, with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendmenis added an exception to the recopaition prnciple of PFRS 3,
Business Combinations W aveid the issue of potential *day 2'gains or logses ariging for labilities
and contingent liakilities that would be within the scope of PAS 37, Provizions, Contingent
Liahilittes wnd Contingent Assets or Philippine-1FRIC 21, Levies, if incurmed scpamtely,

Al the same lime, the amendiments add a new paragraph (o PFRS 3 to clanfy thot contingent
assets do not guality for recognition at the acquisition date.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginming on or after January |, 2022
amd apply prospectively.

s Amendments io PAS 16, Property, Plon and Equdpment: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
agquipment, any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that agset to the location and
condition necegsary for it to be capable of opersting i the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recogmizes the proceeds from selling such ilems, and the costs of producing
those items, in prodit or loss,

The amendment is effective for annual reponing periods beginning an or &fter January 1, 2022
and must be applicd retrospectively o ilems of property, plant and equipment made available Tor
use on oF after the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first applies the
amendiment,

=  Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling @ Contract

The amendments specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a
contract 15 onerous of loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach™
[he costs that relate directly to a contract 1o provide goods or services melude both incremental
costs and an allocation of ¢osts directly related to contract activities. General and administrative
costs do pot relate directly to s contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly charpeable to
the counterparty under the contract,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods bexinning on or alter Jangary |, 2022
The Company will apply these amendments 10 contracts for which it has not yer Rulfilled a1l its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments.
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= Annwral Improvements fo PFRE: 2018-2020 Cycle

* Amendments o PFRS 1, Firsi-time Adeprion of Philippines Firancial Reporiing Standardsy,
Sueboricdiary aiy o firse-lime adopier

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects 1o apply paragraph Dl éa) of PFRS 1 10
measure cumulative translation differences using the amounis reported by the parent, based on
the parent’s date of transition to PFRS. This amendiment is also applied to an associate or jaint
venture that elects to epply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS |

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022
with earlier adoption permitted,

#  Amcndmentz to PFRS 9, Firaucial Dnstruments, Fees fa the T pev cpnt” 1est for
derecognition of finawclal Halidlities

The amendment clarifics the fees that an entity includes when essessing whether the terms of a
new oF modified fnancial liability are substantially different from the terms of the origmal
financial lmbility. These fees include only those paid or received berwean the bormower and the
lender, meluding fees pad or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf,
An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity frst applies the
amendment.

The smendment 15 effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after Jamuary 1, 2022
with earlier adoption permitted. The Company will apply the amendments 1o financial
linkilities that are modified or exchanged on orafier the begining of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendment.

»  Amendments to PAS 41, Agriculiure, Taxation in fair valie measuremenis

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 that entities exclude cash
flows for txation when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of PAS 41.

An entity applies the amendment prospeetvely o fair value measurements on or after the
beginming of the first annual reporting period begmning on or after January 1, 2022 with
earlier adoption permitied,

Effective teginning on or after SJonuaey [, 2023
= Amendments to PAS 12, Deferred Tax refated to Assets ond Lighifitics arizsing from a Single
Transaction

The emendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under PAS 12, o that it no
longer applies 1o trandactions that give rige to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments olso clanfy that where payments that setile a liability are deductible Tor fax
purpaoses, il 15 a marer of judgement (having considered the applicable tax law ) whether such
deductions are artributable for tax purposes to the liability recognized in the finsncial satements
(End interest expense) or te the related asset component (and inlenesl expensel.
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An entity applies the amendments (o transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented for anmual reporting penods on or after January 1, 2023,

= Amendments o PAS B, Definiion of Acopunting Extimaies

The amendments miroduce a new defimbion of aceounting estimates and clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting pelicies and the comection of
errors. Alse, the amendments clarify that the effecis on an accountiing estimsle of a change inan
input or a change in a measurement lechnique are chinges in accounting estimates if they do not
result from the correction of prior period emors.

Am entity applies the amendments 1o changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occwr on or afier January 1, 2023 with carlier adoption permitted. The amendiments
arc not expocted to hove o material ifmpact on the Compaty.

= Amendments o PAS | and PFRS Prsctice Statement 2, Désclasure of Aveouniing Policies

The amendments provide guidance and examples o help entities apply materiality judgements o
gecounting policy disclosures, The amendments ann 1o help entities provide accounting policy
disclosures that are more us=ful by

& Replacing the requitement for entities (o disclose their *significant” accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies, and

o Adding puidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
secounting policy disclosures

The amendients o the Practice Statement provide non-mandatory guidance. Meanwhile, the
amendments to PAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after Jamuary 1, 2023,
Early application is permitied as long as this fact iz disclosed. The amendments are not expected
to have a material impact on the Company.

Effective beginmong on or afier Jonuaey [, 2024
»  Amendments o PAS |, Classificetion of Liahitities av Cuvrent o Now-current

The amendiments clarifv pamagraphs 69 to 76 of PAS |, Preventenion of Financial Stalemenis, 1
specify the requirements for classilying liabilities as current or non-current. The smendmenis
clanfy:

o What s meant by a right to defer settlement;

o That a right to defer must exise at the end of the reporting period:

o That classifiention is unafMected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its defamal rght;
aiil

o Thatl only if an embedded dervative m a convertible linbility is tself an equity instrument
woiild the terms of a Lability not impact its classification.

The amendmenis are effective for annual reporting periods begimning on or after January 1, 2023
and must be applied retospectively, However, in November 2021, the International Accounting
Standards Board ([ASB) tentatively decided 1o defer the effective date 1o no earlier than

Tanvary 1, 2024,
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Effective beginning on or affer SJonuwary {, 2025

FFRS | 7. fisurance Comiracrs

PFRS 17 ix a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance coniracts covering
recopgnition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace
FFRS 4, fnsurance Confraces. This new standand on insurance coniracts applies to all types of
insurance comdracts (i.e., ife, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of
entities that issue them, as well as 10 cenain puarantees and financial instruments with
discretionary participation festures. A few scope excephions will apply.

The averall ohjective of PEES 17 is to provade an accountmg mode] for insurance coatracts that
s more useful and consistent for insurers. In contragt to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are
largely based on grandfsthering previous loeal sccounting policies, PERS 17 provides a
comprehensive model for msurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core
of PEFRS 17 15 the general model, supplemented boy:

o M ospecific adaptation for contracts with direct participation fetures (the vardable fec
approach)
o A simplified approach (1he premivm allocaton approach) mainly for shom-duration conraces

n December 15, 2021, the FRSC amended the mandatory effective date of PFES 17 [rom
Japuary 1, 2023 to January 1, 2025 This is consistent with Circular Letter No. 2020-62 1s3ued by
the Insurance Commission which deferred the implementation of PFRS 17 by twa (2} years after
its eftective date as decided by the |ASH.

PFRS 17 15 effective for reporing penods begimning on or after January 1, 20235, with
eomparative figures required. Eady apphication is permitted.

Dheferved effectivity

Amendments to PERS 10, Consalidumted Financial Statemerts, ond PAS 28, Sale ar Contrilution
wf Assels between aen lnvestor and s Associate or Jolnd Pentare

The amendments address the conflict between FFES 10 and PAS- 28 in dealing with the lass of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an assaciate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a (full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint
ventee imvolves a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain of 1053 resulting from the saleor
contribution of 2ssets that does not constitute a business, however, is recognized ooly o dw
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in (he associale of Joint veniune.

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the ongimal effective
date of Januery 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the IASE completes its broader review of
the research project on eguity accounting that mayv result in the simplification of accounting for
such transactions and af other aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures

;2

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the Company to make
estimates that affect the amounts reponted in the Company s financial statements and accompanying
notes. Future events may occur which will cause the assumnptions used in arriving at the estimates 1o
change. The effects of any change in estimates are reflecied m the findncial statements ag they
become reasonably deferminable.
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Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical expenence and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
clrcumsEances.

dudgments

Revenue from contracts with cistomers

The Company applied the following judgments that significantly affect the determination of the
amount and tming of revenue from contracts with customers:

identifving performance obligations i hrokerage agrecaeniy

Brokernge services congist of promige 1o place or sell an ingurance policy, collect premmums from
policyholders and remit the amounts collected to insurance companies. The Company
determined that for brokemge services, the promise to place or sell an insurance policy, collect
premumms from policyholders and remit the amounts collected 10 insurance companies are
considered as a single distinct performance obligation as thess represent a combined output and
the Cormpany would not be able to saisly its performance obligation by transfemng cach of the
services independently, Accordingly, the commission income 15 recognized at the point in time
when the Company has satistied its performance obligation which is upon collection of premiums
from policyhelders. The obligation to remit is constdered insignificant m relation to the other
components of the performance obligation

Principal versus agenf consideralions

The Company enters into contracts with insurance companies Lo arrange for the provision of the
specified service [ie,, place or sell insurance policies, eollect preminms from policyholders and
feimit the amount collected o insurance companies). The Company determined that it does net
contral the specified goods or service {i.e., insurance policies) provided by the insurance
compinies before these are transferred to the customer (Le.. policyholder), The following factors
imdicate that the Company docs net contral the goods before they are being transferred 1o
customers, Therefors, the Company determined that it is acting &3 an agent in these confracts.

*  The Company is nol primarnly responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the insurance
coverage o policvholders.

*  The Company has ro discretion i estabhishing the price for the insurance policies. The
Company's consideration in the contracts with insurance companies is only the commission
amount based on the specified percentage of premiums collecied from the policyholders.

In addition, the Company cencluded that it tansfers control over its services at a point in time,
upon collection of premiums from the policyholders, because this is when the insurance
companies benefit from the Company s brokerage service

Estimates

i

Presend value of refirenment r.nr:lﬁgufi'ﬂl!

e present value of the pension obligation 15 determined using actuanial valuation, The sctuarial
valuation mvolves makmg various assumptions. These include the determination of the discount
rates, future salary increases and morality rates. Due 1o the complexity of the valuation, the
underhying assumptions snd its long-term natre, defined benetit ablipabons are ghly sensitive
b changes in these assumplions,



The salary projection rale was basesd on the historical trend of salary increase rate of the
Company. The monality rate was based on the 1994 US Group Aonuity Mortality Table, The
assumed discount rates were delzrmined using the market yields on Philippine govemment bonds
with terms consistent with the expected employee benefit payont as a8 the balance sheet dute.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, pension asset amounted 1o P2.98 million and #1.55 million,
respectively. Further details about the assurmptions used are disclosed i Note 14,

b, Recognition of deferred tax assets

Significant judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax asscts that can be
recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future
iy planning strategies. There are many transactons and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertamn during the ordinary courze of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters 15 different from the amounts that were initielly reconded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deforred tax provisions in the period in which such determination was
made.

Ihe Company s estimates of future faxable income indicate thal certain lemporary differences
will be rzalized in the future. The deferred tax assets recognized as of December 31, 2021 and
2020 amounted to #1050 muihon and #1375 mallion. Fudber details about the unrecopnized
deferred tax assets are disclosed in Mote 13,

A,

Fair Value Measurement

As at December 31, 2021 and 2024, the carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities as
reflected in the balance sheets and related notes aspproximate their respective fair values,

Cash and cash eguivalents, Receivbles, Pavelle to insurance principals, Acorued expenses ard
Orfer Hobilites (excluding statutory payables)

The carrying values approximate thewr far values in view of the relatively short-term matunities of
these linancial instruments,

Investments Secuuities

Fair values of quoted private deht secunities are based on gquoted market prices. Fair value of money
market fimds 15 determined by reference o the published net asset value per unit

Al azzets and lizhilities for which fuir value is messured or dizcloged nthe Gonneizl statements are
categorized within the fair value hicrarchy, described as fallows, based on the lowest level mput that
15 siznificant 1o the fair value measurement as o whole:

»  Level 1 - Quoted (umadjusted) markes prices in active markeis for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sipnilicant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observible

e Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the air
value measurement 15 unobservable
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For assels and labilities that are recognized in the fnancal statements on o recurring bisis, the
Company detenmings whethier ransfers have ocourred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing
categorization {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valoe measurcment as a
whole) at each halance sheect date.

The following tables summarize the carrying amount and fair values of the financial instruments,
analyzed based on hierarchy descnbed above for determining and disclosing the [ar valoe of
Mnancisl instruments by valuation technigque:

i | 2020
Carrying Carrying
Value Level 2 Walue Level 2

Assets measured i fair voloe
Invesiment at FYTPL
Unit Trust Investment Fund  BIS1,209,389  RIS1L,09.389  RIS0M09R4  B150,040 984

There were no financial instruments classified under Level | and 3 in 2021 and 2020. There were no
transfers between levels during the vear.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Thig agcount consista of:

021 2020
Peny cash fund F13,100 13,100
Cash in bank (Twote 1§) 314,605,758 236,881,370
Shori-term investments (Note 18} - 39,995,615

PI14,615.838  #276,890,285

Cazh in bank includes demand deposit scsonnts which eam interest ai the prevailing bank deposii
rates and special savings accounts which cam interest at annual rates ranging from 0,108 to 0.13% in
2021 and from O0.02% to O, 109 in 2020, Interest income recognized on cash in bank i 1021 and
2020 amounted to #0.35 million and $0.52 million, respectively.

Short-term nvestments include special savings deposit aceounts with eriginal maturities of less than
three months from the dates of placement. Short-term investments in 2021 and 2020 camed interest
at annual rates ranging from 0.75% to 1.00% and from 0.50% 10 3.20%, respectively. Interest income
recopnized on shor-term investiments in 202 1 and 2020 amounted 1 #0017 millionand #2.09 million,
respectively

Receivables

This secount conssts of:

2021 2020

Accrued intenest receivables P- PZ6,664
Other receivables 6,265,226 0,261,806
B6, 265,216 6,288,470

Accrued mierest receivables are acoruals from shost=term investiments
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Onher receivables include advances 1o emplovees, receivables from the Parent Company (Note 18),
receivables from Social Securivy Syatem, and claims advances made and due from Insurers.

In its capacity as an insurance breker, the Company collects premiums from policyholders and, after
deducting its commissions, rernits the premiums to the respective insurance companies.  Uncollected
premiums from policyholders are receivables that are not recorded in the Company’s balance sheets,
as the Company does not have control over the insurance policies provided by the insurance
companies to their customers and is not exposed to credit nsk on the uncollected premiums

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the gross amounts of uncollected premiums due from
policyholders for contracts sold through the Company’s brokerage service amounted to
P483.94 million and B505 91 million, respectively {see Mot 120

Investments

Az of December 31, 2021, investments al FYTPL pertain lo investments i cash and money market
funds of the Parent Company. Gns from changes in the fair valne amounting 1o #1.17 million and
PO.04 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively, are included in *Other income {loss) - miscellaneous” in
the statements of comprehensive income.

In 2020, the Corpany sold its invesiments i private debt secunities carmed at FVOCH resulting in
Toss on sale amounting to#®1,54 million. This loss is recognized under *Other income (loss) -
miscellineons” in the statements of comprehensive mcome. [nterest income on investments &t
FyOC ] amounted to #0230 million m 2020,

Cither Current Assels

I'his account consiss of;

wno o 0d0
Prepaid taxes P35,395337 P26,354,834
(thers 4617465 2,691,510

B40,012.802  P20.0d6 344

Prepaid (axes represent income tax credits, primardly creditable withholding taxes (CWTs), which can
be claimed against furre income tax lisbility to the BIR. For the years ended December 31, 2021
and 2020, the Company utilized income ax credits amounting 1o #30.35 million and #2428 million,
respectively.

‘Oibers” include primarily creditable withholding taxes for submission and filing in subsequent
period
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9 Property and Egquipment

The composition of and movements in this account follow:

ol
Furnifure,
Fitures  Right-nl-axe
Transportation Leasehnld ani Office Assel-
Equipment Improvement Equipment  {FTice Space Tuial
Cusl
At Bamuary | 0,048 342 BFLIISETD  RIRAZTIRA RIS RIGGIS PAZE]THTS
Additieng 1403975 127, M7 3 R3N.648 - SA64.830
Al December 31 R352.317 TA4TETT 16480386 15 810625 68,08 T(5
Acoumualniod Depreciation
Al Jamary | 3,919,791 4,587,015 10475234 LIBEA4L 2LATATE
Depreciation 1,044,087 1,041 4495 LIME 44T T,165315 11.259.354
At Decembser 31 4963878 5,618,510 12,483,677 9553767 ALAIWEND
Mt Kook Volae ot December 3 F31 AHA 439 ELE1A T PR IO W67 IHSH I]E-.-lﬂ-aﬁﬁ
2020
Fumiture.
Fixtares  Rigla-ofuse
Transpanation Leazzhiokd and CHEice Pk
= I legprovenienl Equipmcnt  Crifice Space Totz]
it
At lanuary | A4 kA B 404 353 BRI, 154,280 P P23 A 54
Additiong 1,125,000 XAy 1,492 a4 15 B0l 4125595
Demecopmitions (1712 500) - - {17125
Al December 3] GO48342 T 2IS6T0 12627254 15626623 h2h1THTS
Acoanmlated Deprociation
An Jamoary | 1737165 4,12 596 Q516,714 - |7 4470
Depreecialmn OS50S 4419 . S L 2 5EEA442 4 HER R0
[Iercongnitions {B25.585) - - - (R25,RRH)
Az December 31 3918.791 4587015 10475230 LARE443 2, 3T04TR

et Dook Valne ot Drecember 31 PIAI2E55]  BOAIRASS  PA1S2008 PR3 43815 141,247,307

In 2021 and 2020, the Compsary sold transponiation equipment for consideration at net book value
agprepating to nil and 80 8% million, respectively.

Ag of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the costs of Rally depreciaed assers still in use amounted to
#1659 million and #1587 million, respectively.

I 2020, the Company recognized nght-of-use asset amounting to #3583 mmillion relating 1o 8 non-
cancellable five-vear lease agreement that the Company entered into on March 11, 2020 with an
affiliate for its office space {Note 18). The initial annual rental rate 15 B7.44 milhon which will
increase by five percent (5%) starting after the first year of the lease contract and will increase at the
same rate every vear thereafller,

There are no réstrictions on titles of property and equipment and the Company does not have any

contrusiual commitment for acquisition of property and equipment as of December 31, 2021 and
20210,
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171, Software Cuosis

The movermenis in software costs follow:

021 2020
Cost
Al Jangary | P11,135387 Pl EO4 845
Addibons 455357 240,542
At December 31 11,590,744 I],135.387
Acenmulated amartizarion
At Tanoary | 4,424 ORY 3,133, 7ES
Amortization 1.339. 756 1 200 303
At December 31 £, 763,844 4424088
Met book valae B3 A0, M0 B6, 711,299
11, ©ther Noncurrent Assers
Thiz account conciats of*
2021 20
Claims advances Po 401,785 P6,401,745
Rental deposit (Mote 18) 1.8723T | ,B72371
Oilers BE.ThT, 838 BR.9TR 412
07,041,994 08,252 568
Adlowanze for imparrment losses [95.169.623) (U6 380,197
P1.3723T1 o T

Clarms advances pertamn (o insurance clams advenced by the Company on hehalf of the msuranee
principals for emerpency purposes to policyholders. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, this sccount
has been fully provided for with allowance for impairment losses

"Others” pertaing Lo anisccklancous asscls and CWTs whose related certificates are awaiting
submission to the Company amounting to P14.41 million in 2021 and P15.20 million in 202). As of
Drecember 31, 2020 and 2020, this account has been fully provided for with allowance for impainment

losses. CWTs whose refated certificates were subsequently received and claimed im 202 | amounted
#1121 milhon.

. Pavable 1o Insurance Principals

This represents insurance premiums already collected by the Company and are due 10 be remitted to
varous insurance companies within 90 davs from inception date of the pelicy. Insurance premiums
collected but not remitied within the 90-day term are held in a fiduciary capacity and are alse
presented as ‘Pavable o insurance principals” in the Company s balance sheets,

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the amount of premivins that are due 1o the insurance companics

and unpaid by the policvholders for contracts sold through the Company’'s brokerege service, not of
the refated commission, amounted 1o #409 41 million and #£411.69 million, respectively. These

amounts are not recognized in the Company’s balance sheets (see Note 6).
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Oher Current Linbilities

This account consisis of:

2021 20240
Financial liabilities
Accounts pavable — premium payiments B130.255.923 B170,025 203
Accounts pavable — others 10,901,878 6004 2213
141,157 801 176,719.426
MNonfinancial Habhilitics
Deferred output WAT 3,309 824 |, 216,508
VAT pavable - net 4,570,910 3316248
Others 4,739,559 Tona418

12,620,293 12,499,174
BI53,778,094  B189.218,600

Accounts pavable — premium pavments inclode {2} insurance policy premiums collected but not yvet
due as of balance sheet date; and (b) premium collections received through the Company's suthorized
hanks which cannot be applied due 1o missing policy information. These premiums will be remitted
tor the respective insurance companies once due and already spplied to the policy.

Accounts payable — others include {a) premiums for refund to policyholders dee to excess pavments
or cancelled policies; (b) bank credits with incomplete information; and (¢ unrelensed operating
capénse checks,

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, "Others’ peraing mainly 1o govermment confributions and other
regulatory payvments (1.e., 5585, PHIC, HDMF and withholding taxes).

14.

Retirement Plan

The Company has a funded noncontnbutory defred beneft retirement plan covenng substanilly all
ity officers and regular emplovess. Under this retirement plan, all covered officers sod emplovess are
entitled to cash benelits after sutislying certsin age and service requirements.

The latest actuariel valustion study of the retirement plan was mads as of December 31, 2021,

The funds are admimistizred by the Trust Depamment of CBC under the supervision of the Retirement
Commities. The Retirement Committees is responsible for giving direction 1o the trustec on the
imvestment of the assets of the fund. The Retirement Commuttee defings the investment stratepy as
often as necessary, at least annually, especially in the case of sigmitficant market developments or
changes to the stucture of the plan participants. When defining the investment stralegy, it akes mio
account the plan’s objectives, benefit obligations and risk capacity, The investment strategy 15
defined in the form of 2 long-term target strocture (mvestment pelicy). The Betrement Commitles
delegates the implementation of the investment policy in accordance with the Investment strategy as
well az various principles and objectives to an Investment Committee, which alse consisis of
miembers of the Board of Trossees, a Director and a Contraller.
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The existing regulatory framework, Republic Act (RA} No. 7641 requires o provision for rehrement
pay o qualificd private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided
however, that the employee’s retinement benefits under any collective bargaming and other
agregmenis shall not be Tess than those provided under the faw. The law does not require minimum
funding of the plan,

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the principal actuanal sssumptions vsed in determining the
retirement liability for the Company's relirement plan are shown below:

021 b
Dviscount rate 4.14% 2.36%
Future salary mereases i 6, 00%
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The details of the remessurement gains on retirement plan are as follows:

il el | 020
At January | PH.302,5%7 B3, 268 540
Remensurement gains on retirement plan 1,434,902 1.548,192
Dreferred tax liability during the year (358,726) (463 858)
Adjustment te deferred tax due o CREATE Act 593.043 -
Recognition of previously unrecognized deferred
twges - (1048277
At December 31 P2OTLELG BE 02 507

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the major calegories of plan assets as & percentage of the iolal
plan assets of the fund are as follews:

2021 2020
NS Amownt % _Amount %
Cash eguivalents B21.925.536 17.82% BIDGE5T F.81%
UITF 13.446,002 81.58% 12428350 05 83%
Other assets 63,367 0.39% 39,220 0. 30%
Other accountabilities (14,071} (009045 {£233) (0. 0% )
P16,421,434 100.00%  PI12966.200 1 00.00%,

[nwestment in UITFs pertaing primarily to the equity and money market funds msintained by the
Trust Department of the Parent Compeany,

Shewn below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments:

2021 220
Less than one year - P
More than one yewr to [ive years E649.pdT 1,182,221
More than five vears to 10 years 18.250. 471 16000 JR0
More than [0 years to 15 vears 4,348,504 6,202 362
Muore than |5 years w 20 years 15,653,319 18,073,780
More than 20 years 664,474, 160 605,214,850

The aversge duration of the defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 13 5 and 4
yoars, respectively.

The Company does nol expect to contribate to ity defined bemefit pension plan in 2022

[he sensitivity analysis below, determined based on reasenably possible changes of each significant
assumption on the retirement benefit obligation as of the balance sheet dale assuming all other
assumptions were held constant, illustrates the impoct of key sssumptions on the retirement benafit
obligation:

Inerease (decrease)

21 2020
DMiscount rate
+1.00% (F792,5%4) (Pa36,831)
-1.00%, 1,143,854 1,108,137
Salary increase rate
F1.00% 1.048,126 1,002 672
-1.00%, (763,74%9) (871,648)
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Income Tax

Income mxes inclede corporate income tax, as discussed below, and final taxes paid al the rate of
20.00% and 15.00% on grogs Philippine peso and US dollar dencminated interest income,
respectively, from bank deposits and imvestments.

Republic Act (RA) No. 9337, da dct Amending Nationa! Infernal Revemie Code, as amended by
RA Mo, 10953 otherwise known as the Tax Reftaem for Acceleration and Inclusion (TRAIN) and
RA No. 11534 otherwise known as Corporate Recovery aind Tax fncentives for Enterprises
(CREATE), provides that regular corporate income tax (RCIT) rate shall be 25.00% while mterest
expense allowed a5 a deducnble expense is reduced to 20.00% of interest income subject 10 final tax.

A minimum corporate imcome tax {MCIT) of 1.00% uniil June 39, 2023 under CREATE on modified
gross income is computed and compared with the RCIT. Excess MCIT over RCIT ¢an be used as a
tax credil agsinst fulure inceme tax lability Tor the nest three years, In addition, any net openting
luss carty over (NOLCO) is allowed as a deduction from tasable income in the pext three years from
the vear of inception.

Revenue Regulations No. 10-2002 defines expenses to be classified as enterfainment, amusement and
recreation (EAR) expenses and sets a limit for the amount that 13 deductible for tax purposes. The
Company”s deductible EAR expenses are limited to 1.00% of net revenues. EAR expenses of the
Company amounted to P3.36 million and #3.54 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively,

Relevant Tax Updates

Teex Reform for Aecelevation and Inclusion {TRAIN Low

Republic Act (RA) No. 10963, the Tax Reform for Aceeleration and Inchusion (TRAIN), is the first
package of the comprehensive tax reform pragram of the gevernment. The bill was signed inlo law
on December 19, 2017 and 1ook effect on January 1, 2018, amending some provisions of the ald
Philipping tax system,

Except for resident foreign corporations, which is still subject vo the existing rate of 7.5%, tax on
interest income of foreign currency deposit was increased to 1500% under TREAITN. Documentary
stamp tax on bank checks, drafis, certificate of deposit not bearmge interest, all debt instruments, bills
of exchange, letters of credil, mongages, deeds and odhers are now subjected 0 a higher rate.

Corporate Recovery and Tax incentives for Enterprises (CREATE) Act

BA No. 11534 gtherwise known as Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enferpnses
(CREATE} was signed into law by President Rodrige Duterte last Marck 26, 2021, The law became
effective on April 11, 2021, fifteen (15) davs after iis publication in a newspaper of general
circulaticn on March 27, 2021

The key changes to the Philippine tax law pursuant to the CREATE Act which have an impact an the
Company are the following:

= Effective July 1, 2020, regular corporate income tax (RCIT) rate is reduced from 30.00% to
25.00% for domestic and resident foreign corporations end to 200 for domestic corpomtions with
net taxable income not exceeding B3.00 million and with teial assets not exceeding
B 100,00 million (excluding land on which the business entity's office, plant and equipment arc
silsated) during the taxable vear.

= Minimum corporgte meome tax (MCIT) rate reduced from 2.00% 1o 1.00% of gross income
effective July 1, 2020 to Juwe 30, 2023,
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 244 of Mational Internal Revenue Code {NIRC), ns amended,
the regulations are further amended o implement Section 4 of Republic Act Mo, 11494, otherwise
known 4s “Bayanihan to Recover as One AQ”, which allows the busingss or enterprise to camy over
MOLCO for wxable vears 2020 and 2021 for the next 5 vears. Inaddition, any excess of the MCIT
over RCIT incurred in 2020 and 2021 can be used as a tax credit against futwre meoare ax lability

for the next five vears from the period of incepiion,

The provision for income tax consisis of

2021 2020
Current
RCIT P28, 146,502 P26, 457,035
Fmal tax 103,945 561,057
Deeferred tax 3,485,431 (2,270,010)
£31,735.878 P24, 178,062

Ac of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the details of net deferred tax assets follow:

021 iy
[Defemred tax asscts on;

Allowance for credit losses P9.913,543 B11,896,252
Unamoriized past sérvice cost 1,207,367 1,625 946
Oiihers 121,716 aRA, 126

Deferred tax habiliy on:
Pension asset - nel (745,274) (463,858,
P10,497.352 P13, 745,460

Deeferred tax liabilities recognized with a direct charge against OCI {excluding CREATE impact)
amounted to #0.36 million in 2021 and #1.5] million in 2020,

Az of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company did not set up defered tax assets on the following
temporary differences as management assessed that these will not be realized in the fisture,

2021 2020

Allowanee For credil and impainment losscs

P55.515.450 P56 726,024

The reconciliation of the statutory income tax to the provision for ineome tax of the Company

fol lows:
i 2020
Stotulory income fax P30,937.507 P25 352 577
Tax effects of.
CREATE adjustment - current tax (2,207,253) £
CEREATE adjustment - defered tax 1.ER4.454
Montaxable income (2e2.101) -
Mondeductible expenses IT1.964 471.694
Change in unrecognized deferred tax zsset and
other movements 167,593 (2.364,080)
Tax paid income {26,376) {281,200

Provision for income tax

P31,735 878 P24.178.082
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fmpract of CREATE Law

Applying the provisions of the CREATE Law, the Company is subjected to lower regular corporate
income tax rate of 25% eflective July 1, 2020, The follewing are the impact of CREATE in the 2021
linancial statements of the Company:

&« Baszed on the provisions of Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 5-2021 dated Apnl 8, 2021 issued by
the BIR. the transitory RCIT and MCIT rates apphicable to the Company for the taxable year
2020 15 27.5% and 1,500, respectively. This resulted in reduction 10 the current income tax due
for the taxable vear 2020 amounting to #2.21 nullion. The reduced amount was reflected i the
2020 amnunl income tax retum Gled in 2021, For linancial reporiing purposes. such reducion in
the 2020 current income laxes was recognized in the 2021 financia] statements a8 reduction to
2021 current income X expense.

& The deferred tax assets os of December 31, 2020 were also remeasured using the lower RCIT rate
of 25.00%, The net decresse in the defervad tax assets amounting to B2 29 million and the related
increase in the provision for deferred tax charped o profit or boss by #2588 million and increase
the other comprehensive income by FO.59 million are recognized in 2021,

There were no tax-related contingent liabilities and contingent assets ansing from the changes in the
tax rates due to CREATE Act

16,

Retained Earnings and Capital Management

Retained Eamings

On January |6, 2020, the BOD declared and approved cash dividends of F100.00 million for
stockholders om record as of January 16, 2020, payable on February 21, 2020. On
December 10, 2020, the BOD declared and approved cash dividends of #3000 million for
stockholders on record as of December 10, 2020, payable on December 21, 2020.

O November 9, 2021, the BODY approved the appropriation of retained earnings amounting to
30,00 million for system replacement of the Company to improve the turnaroumd time of and
automate the Company’'s manual processes. The user acceptance testing will start in June 2022 and
the Company, with the assistance of the Parent Company, expects to fully transition to the new
gvstem within ten { 10) months afier the user acocptance test before it beeomes fully funcional

On February &, 2022, the BOD declared and approved cash dividends of 850,00 mllion for
stockholders on record as of Febraary B, 2022 pavable oo March 1, 2022,

The primary objoctives of the Company’s capital management are to ensure that the Company
complies with externally imposed capital requirements and that the Company maintains strong credit
ratings and healthy capital ratios in order 1o support its business and to maximize sharcholders” value,

I'te Company manages ils ¢apilal structure and makes adjusiments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk charactenstics of its activities. In order to maintam or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to sharcholders, retum
capiial to sharcholders or issue capital securities. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
and processes from the previous years.
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In May 2006, the Insurance Commission (1C) 1ssued Insurance Memomndum Cireular (IMC) 1-2006
intcgrating the compliance standards for the capitalization requirements for insurance brokers and
remsurance brokers, Under this IMC, adeguate capitalization for existing brokers and now entrants is
eseential to attaining sustainable levels of profitability and for the long-term growth of the country™s
insurance mdustry.

IMC1-2006 promulgated that existing insurance or reinsurance brokers must have the following net
worth for the following sears:

Year

December 31, 2006 B3 000,000
December 31, 20407 4, GO0, D00
Decenber 31, 20408 i, DO, 0
December 31, 2009 B, OO0, 00
December 31, 2000 [HERCRLER 1]

A of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company s nel wortl is in compliance with the capital
requirements of 1C.

Ceaienmiad Stack ot
In light of the Parent Company’s 100th anniversary, s Board of Directors approved on
Augnst 5, 2020 a Centennial Stock Grant Plan to issue common shares to eligible grantees.

The Centennial Stock Grant Plan was approved and ratified by the stockholders on Ogtober |, 2020,
subject to the approval of the relevant regulatory agencies. New shareg will be iscued from the Parend
Company’s authorized but unissued shares in Bovor of the China Bank Groog’s regular emploveas and
certain other officers and contractual employees a2 of August 16, 2020, numbering around %400,

On August Y, 2021, the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE} approved the Parent Company's spplicabion
to list 5,451,600 common shares, with a par value of #10.00 per share, to cover the Group's
Centennial Stock Grand Plan. The Parent Company issued a tolal of 539 million shares on
Seplember 1, 2021, The difference berween the fair value of the stock grants upon {ssuance of shares
and the fair vale previousty récognized when the shares vested is recognized in the siatement of
comprehensive income.

The stock grant awarded by the Parent Company to the Company s emplovees amounting o

B0.62 million as of December 31, 2021 is presented under *Other equity — stock grants” in the
Company’s balance sheet. The difference in the fair value of the stock grants upon 1ssuance of shares
15 recopnized in the profit or loss.

7.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company ‘s activities are principally related o the use of financial instruments, which consists of
cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accrued interest receivables, claims atdvances, advances 1o
officers and employees, invesiments al FVTPL, otirer noncurrent assets, accounts pryable, acerued
expenses and other liabilities (excluding statutory payables). Risks are inherent in these activities but
are managed by the Company through & continous process of identification, measurement,
monitoring and mitigatton of these nsks partly through the effective use of nsk and authorty limils,
process controls and monitonng, and mdependent controls.
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The main objectives of the Company s financial risk management are to identify and monilor pessible
risks on an ongoeing basis, to minimize and mitigate such rsks, and to provide a degree of cerainy
about cosls. Exposure o credit, lguidity, foreign currency and market risks arise in the normal
course of the Company’s business activitices.

Credi! rizk

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is minimal as the cash and cash equivalents are deposts with
CBC and CBSI. The investments at FVTPL pertain to investments in money market and cash funds
placed in CBC's Trust Group.

Ml aavtermnm AP [ credir rivk

The carrying values of the Company s financial instroments as reflected m the balance sheets and
related notes already represent the financial instruments” miximum exposure to credit nsk, before and
aflicr taking into account collatéral held or other credit enhancements.

The table below shows the credit guality by class of the Company 's financial assets as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 (gross of allowance for credit losses):

el
Baage 1 Hinge X Stage 3 Tuatal
Caxh ard caxh mpenealeni=® B4 S TR [ B P14 405 730
Deher eocivables &, A5, ITh - - ih2n5, 120
ileher noncurned axscs
Clwims adynnces - - (=) Pt ) T P
Difeeta 1L ETZ. 371 - o 1.971.371
Tutsl mzz!m_m = AL TS BRIOLIA5.120
b Feehird g pety votad Ml
2020
= - - Segy | Suge 1 Auape § Tural
Cash and cash eojuivnlemts® P26 EYT IR P P PIT6ETT RS
epervahlicn
Acvraesd lorend rieemvn b les 2ijhbd - e
Chber race v alles f,260 [ Sl 0 B
Milier predscirment akich
Chis advances hE00,TRS 400, Tk
Chilvas LATZATI LETZ.I 7
Tnitzl PIES NARN2E P- Ph 201 TRS P 00l

* Eiebadlng petng diisd Dl

Stage f (Meither past due nor specifically impaired) - those that are considered current and up to
30 duys past due, and based on change in mung, delinquencies and payment history, do not
demonstrare significent increase in credic risk.

Stage 7 (Past due but not specifically impaired) - based on change in rating, delinquencies and
payment history, the financial azsets demonsirate significant increase in credii nsk, and'or are

considered more than 30 days past due but do not demaonstrate objective evidence of impairment as of
halamee sheet date,

Siage 3 (Specifically impaired) - those that are considered in detault or demonsirate objective
evidence of impaimment as of balance sheel date.
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Impasirmen| assessmienl

Finanoig! asseis at amortized cost

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible since the counterparty is the
Parent Company. Cash in bank and short-term placements are insured by the Philippine Deposit
Insurance Corporation up (0 a maximum coverage of P0.5 malthon for every depositor per banking
institutien

The credit risk for other assets, which consist of rental deposits and other receivables. are also
considered negheble as the Company has ongomg agreements with the counterpacties and the katier
are considerad o be with sonund financial condition

Ligpuaidity rlsk
Liguidity risk is the risk of loss to eamings or capital due {0 the inability 1w meet funding
requirements within a reasopable period of tine at a reasonable price.

The Company monitors its cash fow position and overall liguidity position in assessmg its exposure
1o liguidity risk. The Company mainiming 4 level of cash deemed sulficient 1o inance operations and
o mifigate the effects of flucuation in cash flows.

The table below summanzes the maturity profile of the Company's financial assets used for liguidity
purposes and financial Labilities based on contractual undiscounted payvments as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020;

Ry |
Loma thaw WWithin Alnre than
hin e e el I meanrks s |7 wanks Jedi yEar Laial

Flngmcial Assers
Urceh el o e v LLIEFT LA LT L8 - L LLIR R RNTR
Db prve v alides [ 1 ] == = - £348 334
|eves s i FV T 151,20 388 (ER LR
Uik S i A e 1473371 LEETI
=TT e s AT et S EN LA " - FLATA I TR ]
Finzmcial Lishilitics
Paavshylis b s princqaly BIT AN S5 [ = | = [ B F2TeIm S04
Mg aawEss 4201460 - - A ek
L linkabmy I LA UM Lot s 18991451
v liakidities

Alaig PO @Y LI ISE MR 130244 931

Acaraints prividsh: I0A01.E7H in0gE7E

= Fiidil, A P 318460 Fhiid dhh PILMLALE PIEITIIE
* Escluding petfy cank furd, brokedling fafoee isferest

I
Lasis Themi Wiakin Ml tham
o1 diindind 3 il 1 1o 12 miillis DO Tkl
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Cashoand conh oguivilas® PISTOFTSIE PaEILA 5 [ o FaTT8%1014
Eecrivabicn
Aucerimd] mreroil dnccrvrhle it 20 il
Wit posivables BlE] A - - LR
Irverimerin m FYTPL [EIRIT ] | il S
L8l or i el deerts - - - 1372371 LAt
P393 337011 P10 [ E'I.:'i'lg'-"l P«l.’iig.'.l.'l'l'
Fiizneisl Lighiisei
Fayak|ese jreuranze prmeyaly F17 455,152 F- r P | AL (KL
At ceposcy A EXESaR - s = 4 E38.54N
L eas Tikalirw - | 2R 248 A LhR e LA WIT AN ip AL
Hibwr Tialities
VIS [T PaYEIC T | MaELIn: - - - AHLIRS 20
Moo pars shi (LI L) - L ek ]
FL19 49K T B 4R34 PEIA 0] FES T 2253 EXSh 104
LR a e S ——
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The Company”s vbli gation to insurance companies to remit collections from pelicyholders begins
after 90 days from inception date of the policy, thus it is on demand when the account is already more
than 50 davs. However, the Company is not liable to remit when there 55 no collection,

Foreign cierrency risk

The Company s foreign corrency exposure anses from U'S dollar-denominated cash m bank,
Approximately 2.50% and 2.37% of the total cash in bank iz denominated i US dollar as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Dollar-denominated financal assels are as follows

2021 2020
LIS dollar valoe £154,172 £116.063
Philippine peso value PT.H62.054 P5.616,205

The fliowing table demonsimtes the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar
exchange rates of #50.999 per 51.00 and B48.023 per §1.00, with all other varizbles held constant, of
the Company's income before tax (due 1o changes in the fair value of monetary assets) as of
Drecember 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, There is no other impact on the Company 's equity other
than those already affecting the statement of comprehensive moome.

Increase/decrease Effect on profit before tax

in US dollar rate 2021 2020
+2.00% #157.253 B112.338
-2.00% (157,153) (112,338)

The increase in exchange rate above represents depreciation of the Philippine Peso while the decrease
represents stronger Philippane Meso value,

L5,

Belated Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party of exercise significant influence over the other party in making finencial and operating
decisions. Corporate enbities are also considered 1w be related if they are subject to cormmon contral
ar comtnon significant influence. Transactions between related parties are based on lenns similar of
those offered to non-related partics.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company bas normal banking and other transsctions with its
related parties. The effects of these transactions are reflected in the appropriate accounts m the
finamcial statcaments.

I'he significant amountvolume, outstanding balances, and nature, terms and conditions with respect
to related pary transactions included in the financial statements [ollow:

Tranzactions with the Betirement Plan

The retirement fund of the Company’s employees amounting to #1642 mullion and #1297 million a3
of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, 18 being managed by the Parent Compamy”s Trust
CGiroup.




The Company's retirement plon asset meludes investment in ULTFs managed by the Trust Department

of the Parent Company (see Note 14).

I Y ]
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Key management personnel are those persons having authonty and responsibality for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly.

The remuneration of the Company’s key management personnel {included under *Compensation and

frinze benefits® in the statements of comprehensive income) amounted to B4.72 million and
P4.63 million for 2021 and 2020, respectively.

ther related party transachons
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19, Lenses

The Company has lease coniracis for its office space for five (5} years, with an option to renew the
lease ferm under mumially acceptable terms and conditions. The Company ‘s obligations uinder its
lease are secured by the lessor's title 1o the leased asset. Generally, the Company is resiricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased asset,

The following are the smounts recopnized in the statements of comprebensive moome:

2021 2020
Depreciation expense of right-of-use asset inchuded
in
property and equipment (MNote 9) F7,165325 B2.358 442
Interest expense on lease liability 1,405,751 262276
BR.571,076 B1650,718

The interest expense is included in “miscellaneous expense’ account,

The rollforward analysis of lease liabilicy follows:

2021 2020
As at January | P32,968,282 P
Benewal - 35 BL0,0Z5
Paymenis (T.614.3117) (3,120,619
Accretion of interest 1.405,751 262270
As at December 31 #26,75%9,721 B32.9%8.282

20, Covid-19 Pandemic

In o move o contain the COVID-12 outhreak, on March 13, 2020, the Office of the President of the
Philippines issued a memaorandem directive to impose stringent socizl distancing measures in the
Mational Capital Region effective Merch 15, 20200 Under the Presidential Proclamation No. 922, the
Philtppines had been declared under the state of calaminy beginning March 16, 2020 [or a period of
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six (&) months. This state of calamity has since been extended to September 12, 2021 through
Presidential Proclamation No. 1021, and then again to September 12, 2022 through Proclamation Mo,
1Z14.

The Company was also affected by this and for purposes of risk assessment, the Company considened
thie pralonged effects of the pandemic in the economy and consumer cutlook. Likewise, the high
potential exposure of emplovees to COVID-1% due to current variants which are more infections and
hitting close to home.

The Company complied with the govemment mandate of 30% work force capacity by adopting
CRC s strategy of work-from-home { WFH) and onsite altemate wotrkforce schedule of siaff. Further,
the waork armngement continues to be a rotation of onsite and WFH despite increasing attendance to
T0% in latter part of 2021 duve o implementation of povernment mandated vnecination program,

21, Approval of the Release of Financial Statements

=2
(L9 ]

The accompanying financial statements of the Company were autherized for issue by the BOD an
April 12, 2022,

3 Snmjlm_nmtnn' infurmtlun Reqguired Under Revenue Regunlations 15-20010

Om November 25, 2010, the BIR igsoed Revenue Regolations (R 15-2010 10 amend certain
provisions of BR 21-2002. RR 15-2010 provides that startmg 2010, the notes to financial statements
shall include information on texes and License fees paid or acerued duning the taxable vear.

The Company reported and/or paid the following types of taxes m 2021:

Inprut WAT

Input VAT camied over from previous period B B5,65] 660
Current vear's domestic purchases for:

Groods other than capital goods 637 406G

Services 1449 865 2087271
Total avaulable inpat VAT 7. 73R.931
Less deductions from input VAT -
Total allowable mput VAT P PT. 738031

Chutput VAT

The Company is a VAT-registered company with VAT output tax declaration of B27.84 million for
the vear based on the amount of commission incomeé from premiums remitied 0 insurance companss
in 2021 amounting P231.99 million. Commission mcome reported in the Company’s finencial
statements reflect amounts eamed from hrokerage services under accrual basis. The Company's sales
of services are based on actuzl| collections received, hence, may not be the same as amounts
recognized in the statement of income.

Ag of Decembar 31, 2021, the Company's net VAT payable amounted to 8437 million.
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Withhelding Taxes
Dretails of total remittances of withholding taxes in 2021 and amounts outstanding as of
December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Total Kemitance Balance
Withholding laxes on compensation and bencfils P4.651,282 P 311.6R7
Expanded withholding taxes 4,272,179 1,241,308
R2.021 461 Rl 552075
Taxes and Licenses

Im 2021, taxes and beenses of the Company constst ofi
Business licenses P 1,682,231
Crlhers {82,375
Pl 504, 60

Tax assessiments

Ag of December 31, 20271 and 2020, there are no outztanding ax assessments and tax cases under
ivestigation, litigations nor prosecution in courts or bodies outside the BIR.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

The Stockholders and the Beand of Dircctors
Ching Bank Insurance Brokers, Inc.

2/F, VGP Center, 6772 Ayala Avenue
Rarangay San Lorenzo, Makati City

We have eudited the financial statements of Clina Bank Insurance Brokers, Inc, {the Company) as at
[recember 31, 2021 and for the vear then ended, on which we have rendered the attached report dated
April 22, 2022,

In compliance with Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, we are stating that the above Company
las one (1) siockholder owning one hundred { 100) or more shares each

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

ﬁ”—' A pliaed
anet A, Parigo
Partmer
CPA Cortificate ko, 92305
Tax Idenufication No. 193-975-241
BOATRC Reg. Mo, 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
SEC Partrer Accreditation No, 92305-3EC (Group A)
Valid to cover andit of 202 1 to 2025 financial staemems of SEC covered instmtions
SEC Fim Accreditation No, DO001-SEC [Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 [inancial staternents of SEC eovered mstilutions
BIR. Accreditation No. 08-0019%8-062-2020, December 3, 2020, valid unti] December 2, 2023
PTR No, 8853462, January 3, 2022, Makan City

April 22, 2022
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CHinaBANK
INSURANCE BRONMERS, INC.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBIILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The Management of Chinabank Insurance Brokers, Inc. (hersin refarred to as “the Company”) is
responsible for all information and representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Relurn for the year
endod December 31, 2021. Managemant is lkewise responsible for all information and representations
contained in the finandal statements accompanying the (Annual income Tax Retem or Annual information
Riaturm) covering the same reporting pariod. Furthermaore, the Management is responsible for all information
and representations: cortalned in all the otfer tax retums filed for the reporing pedod, induding, bul not Brmited,
o the value acdded tex andior percentage (2 etums, withholding tax retums, documentany stamp tax reiums,
ard anmy and all olher tax retums.

In this regard, the Management affimns that the attached audited financal stalements for the yaar ended
December 31, 2021 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Retumn are in sccordance with the books and
records of the Company, complete and cormect in all matedal rezpects. Management kewise affirms that:

a. the Annual Income Tax Retumn has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the National
Internal Revenwe Code, as amended, and perinent fax regulations and other issuances of the
Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Ravenue,;

b. any disparity of figures In the submitted reports arising from the preparafion of financial statements
pursant to financial accounting standards and the preparalion of the income lax relum pursuant o
lax accounting rules has been reporled as reconciling items and maintained in the Company's
books and reconds in accordance with the requirements of Revenue Reguiations No. 8=2007 and ather
redevant issuances;

¢ the Company has filed all applicable tax relums, reports and statements required to be filed under
Philippine tax laws for the reporling peried, and all taxes and other impositions shown therean to
be due and payable have been paid for the reporfing period, except those contested in good Faith.

"1
i
i

Signature: s
Frankie G. Panis. President

Date: April 22, 2022

3
Signabure: Jémﬂr—

Maria Victoria A. Dagucon, Accounting Head

Dats: April 22, 2022
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GENERAL INSTRULCTIONS:
AR SER CORPMORATION: THIS G5 SHOTLD BE SUBMITTED WITHIN TIHIRTY {30] CALEMDAR DAYS FIM THE DATE OF THE ANKUIAL
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INPORMATION TOGETHER WITH & COVER LETTER SIGNED THE CORPORATE SECEETAEY (IF THE CORPORATION. THE AMENOED GI5 ANT COVER
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i@/F VEF CENTER 6772 A¥ALA AVENUE, BRGY, SAN LORENZO, MAKATI OTY 1224 :
FICLAL D-PAATL A ALTERNATE E MAIL ApDRER DFFICIAL MOBILE NUMESER JATRRRATE MOWILE NLMETH
[ OFFICIAL B-MAN. ADNDRESS | R
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¥ PURP

TO ACT A5 A BROKER IN SOLICITING, PROCURING, NEGOTIATING, RECENVING, MANAGING AND FORWARDING
APPLICATIONS FOR FIRE, CASUALTY, PLATE GLASS, AUTOMORBILES, TRUCKS AND OTHER MOTOR VEHICLES
ACCIDENT, HEALTH, BURGLARY, RENT, MARINE, CREDIT, DISABILITY, LIFE INSURANCE, AND ALL OTHER KINDS
OF INSURAMCE, INCLUDING REINSURANCE CONTRACTS OR IN ANY OTHER MANNER AIDING IN TAKING DUT
INSURANCE, COLLECTING PAYMENTS OF PREMIUMS DUE ON SUCH POLICIES, AND DOING SUCH OTHER
BUSINESS AS MAY BE DELEGAED TO BROKER OR SUCH COMPANIES IN THE CONDUCT OF A GENERAL
INSURANCE BROKERAGE BUSINESS.
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GENERAL INFORMATION SHEET

STOCK CORPORATION
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CORPORATE NAME: CHINABANK INGURANGE BROKERS INC.
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____Mapdabrenne Ciky
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GENERAL INFORMATION SHEET

STOCK CORPORATION
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|, BELENETTE C. TAN, Corporate Secretary of CHINABANK INSURANCE BROKERS INC. declare
under penalty of perjury that all matters set Forth in this GIS have been made in good faith, duly
verifiod by me and to the bast of my knowledge and beliof are true and correct

I hereby attest that all the information in this G15 are being submitted in complianee with the rules
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission [SEC] the collection, processing.
r;h'rmae ancd d‘u.lrinﬁ ol said information hﬂinu nEcessary Lo GIITY aul the lunctions of Ful:l'u;
authority for the performance of the constitutionally and statutorily mandated functions of the
SEC as a regulatory agsncy.
[ further attest that | bave becn authorized by the Baard of Directors Trustees bo file this GIS with
the SEC
I understand that the Commission may place the corporation under delinguant status for Silurs to
submit the reportorial reguirements three [3] times, consecutively or intermittently, within a
period of five (5) vears [ Section 177, RA No. 11232 ).
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BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP DECLARATION

FOR THE YEAR: 2022

SEC REGISTRATHON NUMBER: Al1998-13785
COHPORATE NAME: CHINABANK INSURANCGE BROKERS, NG
Iastrocicns:

r
3

existe ]

1. Identfy the Benefidal Owner/s of the corporation as described in the Categories of Beneficial Ownicrship in
items A to | below. List doven as many as you can identify, You may use an additional sheet if necessary.
Fill in the required mivrmation on the benefcal owmer o the felds provided for.
T e *Catepory of Beneficial Cwoership™ column, indicate the letter(s) cormesponding thereto. [n the event
that the person identified as beneficial owner falls under several categnries, indicaste all the latters
corresponding to such categnries.
4 If the category is wnder Petter 17, indicate the position held (fe. Director/Trustee, President. Chiel
Facrutive (fficer, Chief Operating Offlicer, Chisf Financial Officer, etc.].
5 D not leave any item blank. Write "N/A" IFthe information required s not applicable or "HONE" if non-

*Beneficial Owner” refers ooty ooniral person/s] whi ujtimarely owniz) or controif{s] or exercise|s] oftimate
elfective vonrol over the corporation, This definidon covers the natural personis} wha actually wwn or controd the

col porabion s distinguished from the legal ovwvneis, Such beneficial ovnorddp may be determined on the basis of the

Lategory

corporation.

E Matural personis) whose dirsctions; instructions, or wishes in conducting the affairs of the cotporation

Deseription

A Matural persenly) awnlig Sractly or indirectly or trough 3 chain of ownership, at least twenty-fee
percent {255 of the voting rights, vating shares or capital of the reparting corporation.
Watural personis] who exercise control over the reporting corporition, alone or together with obhvers,

B thirough any contract, understnding relatiohship, intermediary or tered entity.

C Matuiral personis] having the ability o dect & majorloy of the beard of directors/fmustess, or amy simiar
hiady, of the corparatiog.

i} Matural perennis] having the ahility @ oert @ dominant influeice over the management or palicies of the

are carried out by majority of the members of the hoand of directoes 6f such corporation who are
aceustoried or undor an oblipation to act in accordance with such person’s directions, instructions or
F  Nanmal person(s) acting &% stewards of the properties of corporations, where such properties are under
the care or administration of said netural person{s},
G Matural person(s} who actually own or control the reporting corporation through nominee sharcholders
of nominee diréctors acting for or on behalf of such natural persons,
H Matural persan(s) altimately owning or controfling ar exercising ltimiane effective control over the
corporation through other means not falling under any of the forsgoing categories.
I Mitural persen(s) exercising contral through positions held within 2 corporation (1.e., responsibie for
strategic declstons thot fundamentalty affect the husiness practices or general direction of the torporation
such as the members of the board of diréctars o trustees ar similar body within the corporation; or
EYBITising executive control over the daily or regular affairs of the corporation through & senlor
management position). This category is only applicable In exceptional eases where no natural personis
identifiable who ultimately owns or exerts control over the corparntion, the reparting corporation having
exhausted all reasonable mians of Identification and provided there are no grounds ior Sespecton.
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